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Legal Memorandum 

 
FCC Issues Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on FY 2022 Regulatory Fees 

 
 Late last week, the Commission released its annual Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (the 
“Notice”) contemplating proposed regulatory fees for the current fiscal year—i.e., Fiscal Year 
2022 (“FY 2022”).  Although the Notice seeks comment on multiple different issues, naturally the 
most significant item on which broadcasters may wish to comment is the FCC’s proposed 
regulatory fee schedule for FY 2022.  If adopted in its current form, the proposed regulatory fee 
schedule would increase both radio and television regulatory fee payments as compared to the last 
several years.  The Commission is also seeking comment on a number of other issues of note, 
including: (1) the methodology for calculating television broadcaster fees based on population; 
(2) whether to increase the annual de minimis threshold; and (3) whether to adopt any new 
regulatory fee categories. 
 
REMEMBER: All the fee amounts discussed below are currently just proposals set forth in the 
Notice.  It is possible for the proposed fees to change prior to the FCC’s formal FY 2022 
Regulatory Fees Order. 
 
The Notice’s Proposed Regulatory Fee Amounts for Radio Broadcast Stations.  Under the Notice’s 
regulatory fee proposal for radio broadcast stations, it appears that most radio stations would see 
a fee increase of approximately 13% if the Notice is adopted as currently drafted.  Below, please 
find a chart comparing the FY 2021 regulatory fees that were ultimately adopted for radio stations, 
followed by the Notice’s proposed FY 2022 radio station regulatory fees.  
 

https://docs.fcc.gov/public/attachments/FCC-22-39A1.pdf
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As radio broadcasters likely recall, last year (FY 2021) the FCC also initially proposed regulatory 
fee increases for radio broadcasters, in amounts ranging approximately 5% to 15% higher than 
FY 2020 regulatory fees.  Vigorous advocacy from NAB and other industry participants 
successfully persuaded the Commission to reconsider and lower those FY 2021 fees (as well as 
those for television broadcasters).  This year, the NAB has again taken note of the proposed 
increases in the current, FY 2022 Notice, issuing a press release last Friday calling the “staggering 
13% fee increase” for radio broadcasters “unjustified” and a risk to “undermining the unique 
locally focused service that our communities rely upon.” 
 

https://nab.org/documents/newsRoom/pressRelease.asp?id=6486
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Population-Based Fees for Television Broadcast Stations.  We have written to you before about 
how, until recently, regulatory fees for television broadcast stations were assessed based on the 
market served by a given station, as defined by Nielsen Designated Market Areas (“DMAs”).  Four 
years ago, however, the FCC adopted a new methodology for assessing regulatory fees for 
full-power broadcast television stations by using the actual population covered within the station’s 
noise-limited service contour (“NLSC”), instead of DMAs.  The Commission has used this 
“population-based” methodology exclusively since FY 2020. 

 This year, the Commission has chosen not to reopen that decision and proposes to continue 
to assess fees for full-power broadcast television stations based on the population covered by a 
full-service broadcast station’s NLSC.  The Notice does, however, open the floor for discussion 
regarding the proposed mechanism for calculating regulatory fees in accordance with the 
population-based methodology. 

For those interested in the fine details of how the current methodology works, it operates 
by calculating fees using the population covered by the station’s projected NLSC, multiplied by a 
factor derived by taking the revenue amount required from all television fee categories and 
dividing it by the total population count of all “feeable” call signs.  For FY 2022, the Notice 
proposes adopting a factor of .88 of one cent ($.008803) per person served within a full-service 
broadcast station’s NLSC, which is an increase over the $.007793 multiplication factor used for 
FY 2021.  Appendix G of the Notice lists all relevant proposed fee information for each television 
licensee.  If the proposals in the Notice are adopted as-is, our review shows that most television 
broadcasters can expect a fee increase ranging anywhere from several hundred to several thousand 
dollars (or more, in the case of certain larger broadcasters).  

De Minimis Threshold and Additional Regulatory Fee Categories.  Two prior proposals from NAB 
are flagged in the Notice as items on which comments are solicited: (1) how the Commission 
should calculate the costs of collecting regulatory fees in establishing the annual de minimis 
threshold of $1,000, and (2) whether unlicensed spectrum users, especially large technology 
companies, should be required to pay regulatory fees. 
 
 Regarding the de minimis threshold, under the Communications Act, if the Commission 
determines that the cost of collecting a regulatory fee would exceed the amount being collected 
from a party, the Commission is permitted to exempt that party from paying regulatory fees.  The 
FCC has previously explained that the fee collection process involves many steps, such as: 
invoicing; processing payments; responding to debtor questions and disputes; debt transfer for 
third-party collection; and data compilation, preparation, and validation.  Since 2017, the 
Commission has estimated that the cost of such processes exceeds $1,000 on average and that 
therefore the de minimis threshold should be set at the current, $1,000 level. 
 
 Last year, in response to an FCC request for comments as to how the Commission can 
improve its regulatory fee process overall, NAB proposed that the de minimis threshold be 
increased above $1,000 to assist smaller broadcasters.  The Notice for FY 2022 now seeks 
comment on NAB’s proposal and requests that commenters discuss, among other things: (1) to 
what level the de minimis threshold should be increased; (2) whether the cost of collecting a 
regulatory fee begins after the fees are due and once delinquencies occur; (3) how the FCC should 
calculate the costs of collection; and (4) whether the cost of collection should begin when the FCC 
collects data on the licensee’s regulatory fee status, which generally occurs before the due date for 
such fees. 
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 Additionally, as noted above, the Notice seeks comment on whether the Commission 
should adopt “new regulatory fee categories”—a proposal advanced last year by NAB in specific 
relation to adding unlicensed spectrum users, especially “Big Tech,” into the regulatory fee payor 
base.  Although the Notice does not expressly address NAB’s comments that unlicensed spectrum 
users “take up significant Commission resources . . . yet pay no associated regulatory fees as a 
result,” additional comment is solicited in order to help inform FCC consideration of those and 
other issues related to the adoption of new regulatory fee categories (if any). 
 
 Comments on the Notice’s various proposals are due by July 5, 2022.  Reply comments 
are due by July 18.  
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